ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Responses to Submitted Questions:  Real Estate Investment Advisory

This document serves as a formal response to the questions submitted through the process established by the Illinois State Board of Investment (“ISBI” or the “Board”).  As stated in the Request for Competitive Proposals (“RFP”), questions concerning the RFP had to be submitted in writing via e-mail to the Search Contacts by 3:00 PM, CST, Monday, October 21, 2011.  Responses to questions properly submitted are consolidated into a single Q & A document as detailed below and posted on the Board’s website on or about October 24, 2011.  The Q & A document does not identify the source of the query.

1. Will ISBI consider a diversified value -added fund for this mandate?

No. This search is specifically for a value- added mandate with a dedicated focus on multifamily properties.

2. We are still in the registration process with the SEC to be an RIA.  We ought to be done in early December.  Can we still submit? 

SEC registration is required at the time of submission (October 31, 2011).

3. The Board’s Investment Policy states in Section XV. Real Estate Investment Guidelines, Subsection D, Investment Objectives and Guidelines,  “The Board prefers to utilize separate account investment structures because of the greater control these investments provide over the decisions in connection with the ownership and management of the underlying real estate assets.” Information is requested in the RFP regarding prior funds and Value-Added Multi-family Funds.  Is the Board only interested in Funds or will it consider separate accounts?

This specific search is for a commingled fund only. Separate accounts will not be considered due to the size of the allocation (up to $50 million).

4. Question #17 – “% Complete” Column Question : We believe that a 100% will be input in this column for a fund that is fully realized and liquidated.  Also, a 100% will be input here if an unrealized fund has called all of the capital committed/raised.  Please confirm that this is correct.  Lastly, if an unrealized fund as of 6/30/11 has committed capital of $500M, will call a total of $400M and invested $350M, will the % entered be $400M/$500M or $350M/$400M?  In this example the total committed capital will never be called and we would like to understand what % you are looking for in such a case.

“% complete” for the purpose of this questionnaire is defined as: equity dollars invested in disposed or sold projects / equity dollars invested in all projects. For a fully realized fund, the result will equal 100%. For a fund that is not fully realized, the result will be less than 100%.

5. Question #17 – “IRR to Date (net)”; “Multiple to date (net)”; “IRR on Realized (net)” Columns Question : For example, on a realized fund, the IRR to Date (net) column and IRR on Realized (net) column would be the same number.  For an unrealized fund, only the IRR to Date (net) column would be input and an “N/A” would be input in the IRR on Realized (net) column.  Please confirm the above or provide additional guidance on how to complete those columns.

IRR to Date is the calculated IRR based on all cash flows to date (June 30, 2011) as well as the most recent quarter’s (2Q) market value of the remaining properties in the fund. The IRR on Realized is the calculated IRR on fully realized deals as of June 30, 2011 only. For a fully realized fund, the two numbers will be the same. A response of N/A is only appropriate if the fund is very early in its life and cash flows are primarily fees OR under the IRR on Realized column if no deals in the fund have been realized.

6. Should all prior closed end real estate fund data through June 30, 2011 include separate accounts?

No. Only prior fund data is requested.

7. Question #18 – “Projected Equity Value” Column Question : For example, an unrealized asset through 6/30/11 has made distributions of $2M.  This $2M as it applies to this RFP appears as though it would be classified as “Realized Proceeds”.  Please confirm.  Then in a year another $1M is projected in distributions and the investment is liquidated.  The sales proceeds are $5M.  To calculate the Projected Equity Value column distributions plus projected distributions plus sales proceeds would be added to total $8M.  Please confirm the above or provide additional guidance on how to complete this column.

The Realized Proceeds are the actual cash flows that have been distributed to the investor to date for a particular property/project. The Projected Equity Value is the sum total of realized proceeds + anticipated proceeds, including income as well as sales proceeds, for a particular project over its full life. The Projected Equity Multiple will be calculated as Projected Equity Value/ Invested Equity.

8. Will the ISBI consider investments in separate accounts or operating ventures in addition to closed-end funds?

No. Only closed end funds will be considered. 

9. What is the approximate size of the allocation that the ISBI is considering for this multifamily commitment?

Up to $50 million.
10. What are the qualification criteria of the Emerging Manager program?

Effective April 3, 2009, Public Act 96-0006 revised the definition of “emerging investment manager.” As a result, the current definition applicable to ISBI is found in 40 Ill. Comp. Stat. § 5/1-109(4) and is defined as “a qualified investment adviser that manages an investment portfolio of at least $10,000,000 but less than $10,000,000,000 and is a ‘minority owned business’, ‘female owned business’ or ‘business owned by a person with a disability’ as those terms are defined in the Business Enterprise for Minorities, Females, and Persons with Disabilities Act.”
For purposes of this policy, the term “Minority Investment Manager” includes emerging investment managers and/or minority owned business, female owned business, or business owned by a person with a disability, as those terms are defined in the Business Enterprise for Minorities, Females, and Persons with Disabilities Act.

11. Question 16 of the RFP references an excel datasheet “Equal Employment Opportunity Chart”.  Is this a template to be provided or shall each manager create this?

This template is available with the rest of the RFP materials on ISBI website (http://www2.illinois.gov/isbi). 

12. Question 17 of the RFP requests data on all prior closed-end funds.  If a responder is proposing a separate account or an operating venture, shall the responder include data on separate accounts versus closed-end funds?

No. Please see answer to Question 6. 

13. Question 18 of the RPF requests data on all prior multifamily investments (equity committed, realized IRR, etc).  Should the response be at the fund level or at the individual asset level?

Please provide the data requested on the individual asset level. Fund level data is requested in Question 17.

